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STATE OF FLORIDA Gl S s
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION é’/\f}?‘;;}/ 7,
Haydon Burns Building RO TR
605 Suwannee Street ’Cfgii’;'f;f{ﬂ
Tallahassee, Florida <
OHM REMEDIATION SERVICES CORP., m
Petitioner,
vs. | ~ DOAHCASENO.: 00-0495BID “¥PN)71-CLOS

DOT CASE NO.: 99-0246
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,

Respondent,
and
WRS INFRASTRUCTURE AND
ENVIRONMENT, INC.,
Intervenor.
/
FINAL ORDER

This proceeding was initiated by the filing of a Notice of Protest on October 22, 1999,
and a Formal Protest and Petition for Formal Administrative Hearing on November 1, 1999,
by Petitioner, OHM REMEDIATION SERVICES CORP. (hereinafter OHM), pursuant to
Section 120.57(1), qurida St_atutes, in response to a Notice of Inteqt to Award (Revised)
posted by the Respondent, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (hereinafter
DEPARTMENT), on October 20, 1999. On December 1, 1999, an Order Granting
Intervention Was issﬁedi at thé reéuesf of Tntervenof, WRS INFRASTRUCTURE AND

ENVIRONMENT, INC. (hereinafter WRS). On January 28, 2000, the matter was referred to
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the Division of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter DOAH) for assignment of an
Administrative Law Judge and a formal hearing.

A formal administrative hearing was held in this case in Miami, Florida, on March 5
through 8, 2001, before Patricia Hart Malono, a duly appointed Administrative Law Judge.
Appearances on behalf of the parties were as follows:

For Petitioner: William C. Davell, Esquire
Christopher Barber, Esquire
May, Meacham & Davell, P.A.
One Financial Plaza, Suite 2602
Bank of America Tower
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33394

For Respondent: Brian F. McGrail, Esquire
Brian A. Crumbaker, Esquire
Assistant General Counsel
Department of Transportation
605 Suwannee Street, M.S. 58
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0458

For Intervenor: Betty J. Steffens, Esquire
' Samantha Boge, Esquire
Post Office Box 82
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-0082

At the hearing, OHM presented the testimony of Tom McSweeney, a vice president of

-OHM; Curtis Lee, a project manager employed by OHM; Jon Berry, an employee of WRS;

Mauricio Gomez, a contamination impact coordinator and environmental manager employed By
the DEPARTMENT in District VI; Nancy Lyons, Contracts Administrator, employed by the
DEPARTMENT in District VI; Lillian Costa, an environmental scientist émployed by the
DEPARTMENT in District VI; Javier Rodriguez, a project development engineer employed

by the DEPARTMENT in District VI; Paul Lampley, a contamination impact coordinator
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employed by the DEPARTMENT in District VI; Gustavo Pego, the DEPARTMENT’S
Director of Operations in District VI; and John Martinez, the DEPARTMENT’S Director of
Production in District VL. OHM offered Exhibits 1 through 27, 29 through 34 (including
29(a)), 36 through 39, 44 through 48, 52, and 86 through 95, which were admitted into
evidence. The DEPARTMENT presented the testimony of Mauricio Gomez, and offered
Exhibit 86, which was admitted into evidence. WRS presented the testimony of Paul Lampley
and offered Exhibits 70 and 78, which were admitted into evidence.

On rebuttal, OHM sought to have admitted certain portions of the deposition testimony
of Gustavo Pego to rebut a portion of the testimony elicited by the DEPARTMENT from Mr.
Gomez during its case-in-chief; the DEPARTMENT and WRS objected. Ruling was withheld
on OHM’S request, and OHM was permitted to proffer the selected portions of the deposition
testimony. The parties submitted memoranda of law with respect to the admissibility of the
testimony, and the proffered testimony was rejected in an order entered April 24; 2001.

Pursuant to motions for official recognition filed by the DEPARTMENT and OHM,
DOAH entered orders on April 25, 2001 and May 4, 2001. Pursuant thereto, official
recognition.was taken of the answer briefs filed by the DEPARTMENT and by WRS, and of

the opinion and mandate in OHM Remediation Services Corp. v. State Dep’t Transp., 782 So.

2d 882 (Fla. 3d DCA 2001).

The transcript of the proceedings was filed with DOAH on April 6, 2001.

On May 4, 2001, OHM filed a Preposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law.
On April 7, 2001, the DEPARTMENT and WRS each filed a Proposed Recommended Order.
On May 8, 2001, OHM filed a Motion to Supplement Proposed Findings of Fact and
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Conclusions of Law, and on May 11, 2001, the DEPARTMENT filed a Motion to Supplement

i’roposed Recommended Order. On May 18, 2001, OHM filed a response to the

DEPARTMENT’S Motion to Supplement Proposed Recommended Order.
On July 30, 2001, Judge Malono issued her Recommended Order. On August 27,
2001, OHM filed its exceptions to the Recommended Order. The DEPARTMENT and WRS

each filed a response to OHM’S exceptions on September 10, 2001. On September 25, 2001,

the DEPARTMENT filed a Motion for Costs.

STATEMENT OF.THE ISSUE

- As articulated by the Administrative Law Judge in her Recommended Order, the issue
presented was: “Whether the Department of Transportation’s proposed action, the award of

the contract in question to WRS Infrastructure and Environment, Inc. , is contrary to its

goveming statutes, its rules or policies, or the proposal specifications.” The Administrative
WLavw Judge also determined that “The standard of pfoof is whether the Department of

~ Transportation’s actions were clearly erroneous, contrary to competition, arbitrary, or

capricious.”
BACKGROUND

The subject of this bid protest is the DEPARTMENT’S District VI Contamination
Assessment and Remediation Contract for Project and Bid Number REP-DOT-99/2000-
6026DS, FIN Number 249943 (hereinafter the District VI contract). On October 20, 1999, the
DEPARTMENT posted its Notice of Intent to Award (Revised) stating its intention to award
the District VI contract to WRS as the highest ranked proposer. On November 1, 1999,
OHM, the second highest ranked proposer, filed a Formal Protest and Petition for Formal
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Administrative Hearing. On December 1, 1999, an Order Granting Intervention was issued at
the request of WRS. On January 28, 2000, the matter was referred to DOAH for assignment
of an Administrative Law Judge and a formal hearing. On February 18, 2000, an order was
entered consolidating the OHM protest with the Formal Protest of Metcalf & Eddy, Inc.,
DOAH Case Number 00-0494BID.

The final hearing was held March 5 through 8, 2001.

EXCEPTIONS TO RECOMMENDED ORDER

OHM'’S first éxception is to Findings of Facf No. 31, 102, and 103, claiming the
Administrative LaW Judge erred in not finding that Lillian Costa’s original scoring of WRS’S
and OHM’S proposals was arbitrary and capricious because she improperly compared the
OHM and WRS proposals, in violation of DEPARTMENT policy and the Request for
Proposals (RFP).

OHM states that in paragraph 31, the Administrative Law Judge notes that Costa’s
original scoring for WRS included the handwritten comment “close to OHM proposal” on her
Technical Proposal Evaluation Sheet. OHM claims that one of the restrictions on the
Technical Review Committee in conducting its evaluation was that the members review the
proposals independently, without cofnparing them.

OHM also argues that the Administrative Law Judge erred in finding that despite
Costa’s comment that WRS’S proposal was “close to OHM proposal,” that Costa nevertheless
“scored the two proposals separately.” The Administrative Law Judge, according to OHM,
further improperly found that Costa’s handwritten comment “is not sufficient to support an
inference that Costa inappropriately compared the WRS and OHM proposals,” and that the
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comment “could reasonably be interpreted as a comment on the quality of the proposals rather
than the number of points she awarded.” These findings, according to OHM, are not
supported by the evidence, and constitute an arbitrary conclusion.

According to OHM, the Technical Proposal Evaluation Sheet gives the total number of
points available for each portion of the technical proposals, then asks the evaluator to provide
his or her scoring and notes or comments supporting the scoring. OHM argues that it cannot
reasonably be argued that Costa was not comparing the proposals as part of her scoring when
she speciﬁcally stated that one Was “close to” the other in her comments supporting her

scoring. Regardless of whether Costa made a self-serving statement that she did not compare

- the two proposals in her scoring, OHM concludes, her comment sheet demonstrates beyond

question that she did. Thus, OHM argues, the Administrative Law Judge’s finding that she

~ did not improperly compare the two proposals is not supported by any competent, substantial

evidence.
The record reveals that Ms. Costa testified that she evaluated the proposals
independently in accordance with the District VI Contractual Services Acquisition Procedures.

It is the Administrative Law Judge s function “to comnsider all the evidence presented resolve

nconﬂlcts Judge cred1b111ty of w1tnesses draw perrmss1ble inferences from the ev1dence and

‘ reach ultlmate ﬁndmgs of fact based on competent, substantlal ev1dence. Helfetz v. Dep’t of

Businessr Reg., 475 So. 2d 1277, 1281 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985); State Beverage Dep’t v. Ernal,
Inc., 115 So. 2d 566 (Fla. 3d DCA 1959)'. Having heard the testimony and observed the
demeanor of the witness, the Administrative Law Judge concluded that the handwritten
comment “close to OHM proposal” was not “sufficient to support an inference that Costa
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inappropriately corrblpéredA the‘WRS and OHM proposals.” “The notion that special deference
is owed to a credibility finding by a trier of fact is deeply imbedded in our law.” Metropolitan
Dade County v. Bannister, 683 So. 2d 130 (Fla. 3d DCA 1996). The Administrative Law
Judge’s findings in this regard are supported by competent, substantial evidence.

OHM’S first exception to Findings of Fact No. 31, 102, and 103, is rejected.

OHM'’S second exception is also to Findings of Fact No. 31, 102, and 103, and to the
Administrative Law Judge’s failure to find that Lillian Costa’s original scoring of the proposals
of.WRS and OHM was arbitrary and capricious because she improperly scored based on
factors outside the scope of the RFP.‘

OHM refers to Ms. Costa’s comment sheet for WRS‘ which also included the
handwritten comments: “ongoing, outstanding project” nee&ed “continuity,” and “other
departments like[d] working” with WRS. Although the Administrative Law Judge found these
comments “should not have been included,” the Administrative Law Judge nevertheless found
that the comments were not sufficient “to support the inferences that Ms. Costa based her
scores on criteria other than those ‘speciﬁed in the RFP . . . .” (Finding of Fact No. 103) This
finding, OHM argues, is not supported by any evidence in the record.

OHM continues to argue that the Technical Proposal Evaluation Sheet specifically sets
forth Ms. Costa’s reasbns for assigning the points she did, and that Ms. Costa admitted during
her testimony that the two issues raised in her comments are outside the scope of the RFP.
Thus, OHM concludes, the reasons for Ms. Costa’s original scores for WRS admittedly
include factors outside the scope of the RFP. As such, OHM concludes, the Administrative
Law Judge’s finding that Costa did not consider matters outside the RFP is not supported by
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any competent, substantial evidence, and is mere arbitrary conjecture, especially given that the
Administrative Law Judge expressly recognized that the comments were improper.

The record reveals, and the Administrative Law Judge found, that based on Ms. Costa’s
testimony and a review of the cemments made on the WRS Technicel Proposal Evaluation
Sheet that “ongoing, outstanding project needed continuity” and that “other departments like”
working with WRS did not establieh that Ms. Costa did not properly evaluate the proposals on
the criteria set forth in the RFP. It is the Administrative Law Judge’s role to evaluate‘a
witness’s testimony and demeanor at hearing and to weigh the totality of the evidence. Heifetz,
475 So. 2d at 1281. Ms. Costa testified that she had worked with OHM in the past on the same
contamination and remediation contract and established a professional rapport with OHM.
There is no competent, substantial evidence that indicates a prior working relationship with
either WRS or OHM had an undue influence on Ms. Costa’s evaluation’ of either firm’s
proposal. The Administrative Law Judge concluded as much in her findings and these ﬁndiﬁgs

are supported by competent, substantial evidence.

OHM’S second exceptlon to Fmdmgs of Fact No. 31 102 and 103 s rejected

OHM’S thlrd exceptlon 1s to Fmdmgs of Fact No. 48 and 99, clalmmg that the

;Adnumstratlve Law Judge N ﬁndmg that OHM at the tune 1t submltted 1ts September 24 1999

. ‘2“« e

| rebuttai” letter was aware of all mformatlon the Techmcal Rev1ew Comrmttee cons1dered at
its October 4, 1999, meeting, is not supported by any evidence.
Key to its position, argues OHM, is Exhibit 27, a September 24, 1999, “rebuttal” letter
written by OHM’S counsel to Brian McGrail, counsel for the DEPARTMENT. In this letter,
OHM responded to the Formal Protest filed by WRS, which was, at that time, the second-place
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proposer. Thereafter, DEPARTMENT personnel spoke and learned several things about

OHM'’S involvement in District IV. Subsequently, on October 4, 1999, the Technical Review |

Committee met and considered WRS’S protest, the “rebuttal” letter, and the additional
information.

As a result, the Administrative Law Judge held that OHM in its rebuttal letter was given
full opportumty to respond to all matters the Technlcal Rev1ew Commrttee consrdered on
October 4 1999 and rejected OHM’S contentlon that it should have been given the opportunity
to respond to these issues, because the Administrative Law Judge found that OHM already had
been | given this opportunity.

- OHM claims that the Administrative Law Judge’s finding that OHM was aware of all

~matters considered by the Technical Review Committee at its October 4 meeting at the time

OHM submitted its September 24, 1999, “rebuttal” letter is completely unsupported by the
evidence. Specifically, OHM argues, there was absolutely‘no evidence presented that would
support an inference that OHM was aware that it allegedly was replacmg Metcalf & Eddy in

District IV, that Metcalf &_ Eddy s contract had been worth about $2 mllhon per year

d be gettmg busrer as Metcalf 7& Eddy was phased out
These erroneous unsupported fmdmgs accordlng to OHM were absolutely cruc:1a1 to‘
the Administrative Law Judge’s overall finding against OHM. The Administrative Law Judge
found that the information concerning Metcalf & Eddy’s work and OQHM?’S future work in
District IV was sufficient for the DEPARTMENT to question whether OHM would be able to
meet its 90 percent commitments. Thus, if the evidence established that OHM was not even
aware of these matters (upon which the Technical Review Committee ultimately acted) until
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rarsed in the WRS protest prior to the Techmcal Rev1ew Committee consrdenng the

after the fact, then OHM, it is argued, was kcertainly unfairly treated.

OHM stresses that throughout these proceedings OHM contended that it had never
heard of these assertions concerning the Metcalf & Eddy work and OHM’S alleged future work
prior to October 13,7 1999. OHM argues that there was absolutely no evidence in the record
upon which the Administrative Law Judge could make the finding that OHM, or anyone else,
was aware that Metcalf & Eddy’s contract had been worth about $2 million per year, or that
OHM would be getting busier as a result of replacing Metcalf & Eddy, prior to Mr. Gomez’s
telephone call.

Initially, review of the Recommended Order reveals that reference to Finding of Fact
No. 48 in OHM’S third exception regarding the “rebuttal letter” and the Qctober 4, 1999,
Technical Review Committee meeting appears to be erroneous. Finding of Fact No. 48 refers
to the duties and’responsibilities of Paul Lampley, contamination impact coordinator in District
IV, and a kick-off meeting he had with OHM on October 8, 1998. It is Finding of Fact No.
98, not Finding of Fact No. 48, that makes reference to the “rebuttal letter” and the October 4,

1999 Technical Revrew Committee meetmg Thus the exceptlon w111 be addressed as if it

e

were raised as to Fmdmg of Fact No 98

The record reveals ,that OHM A was given ample opportumty to respond to the allegatlons

information. OHM was currently providing services in District IV on a contamination and
remediation contract managed by Paul Lampley. The record also reveals that the
Administrative Law Judge specifically found that OHM knew Metcalf & Eddy was the
incumbent contamination and remediation contractor for right of way work and that OHM
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| would be taking over that work in District IV. (Finding of Fact 46) The record further reveals
that the Technical Review Committee performed a re-evaluation of the WRS and OHM
proposals based on the issues raised in the WRS Formal Protest, the OHM vt/ritten rebuttal, and
the confirmation provided by Paul Lampley regarding two of OHM’S key personnel on the
District IV contract and the workload for that contract. The record supports the Administrative
Law Judge’s finding that “The Department had no obligation to allow OHM another
opportunity to explain the omission in its proposal of any mention of the District IV contract.”
(Finding of Fact No. 99)

The documentary evidence and the witnesses’ testitnony establish that the “revised”
scores of the Technical Review Committee appropriately reflect the weight each member gave
to the information confirmed by OHM in its written rebuttal to the WRS protest; and that
Maurico Gomez and Litlian Costa testified that OHM’S reduced score was due to the fact that
the same two key individuals were committed to the District IV contract and that OHM did not
list any current or projected workload for those personnel, nor did it identify the District IV
contract.

: It is within the province of the Administrative Law Jﬁdge to judge the efedibility of

As

fact A rev1ew of the entire record reveals that the facts to wh1ch exceptlon has been taken in

thls regard are supported by competent substantlal ev1dence |
OHM’S th1rd exceptlon to Findings of Fact No 98 (or 48), and 99, is rejected
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OHM’S fourth exception is to Finding of Fact No. 105, because the Administrative Law
Judge erred in finding that the Technical Review Committee’s agreement that OHM’S score

would have been affected if the Technical Review Committee had known of the District IV

contract, did not amount to an agreement that OHM’S score should have been lower.

OHM argues that the‘eV1dence was clear and consistent that the Techmcal Review
Comrmttee members when they met on October 4 1999, agreed that had they known the
information about OHM’S alleged work in District IV, it would have affected their original
scoring of OHM’S proposal. In light of these findings, OHM argues, it was error for the
Administrative Law Judge to find that when the committee met and agreed that the information
about District IV would have “greatly affected” their scoring if it had been known originally, it
did not amount to an agreement that OHM’S scores should have been lower.

OHM argues that this ﬁnding is unsupported by the extensive evidence on this issue,

and is arbitrary. According to OHM, the only evidence offered supports a finding that the

Technical Revrew Comm1ttee members reached an agreement during then' meeting that had they |

known of the allegedly missing information about OHM’S work in District IV, OHM’S
original scores would have been loWer. - This evidence, OHM continues, demonstrates a plain

violation of the requirements imposed on the Technical Review Committee by the RFP and the

DEPARTMENTS internal policies that the proposals be evaluated independently and

objectively,' and not in a “meeting type environment.” As such, it is arguedi, the Administrative

Law Judge’s findings in this regard are not supported by competent, substantial evidence, and

- are plainly erroneous.

The record reveals that upon review of the allegations contained in the WRS Formal
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adding or subtracting points on'either the OHM or the WRS proposal based on the OHM

admm1strator the Adnumstratlve Law Judge determmed that their testunony was reasonable

» _to estabhsh w1th : he requlslte degree of certainty that the Techmcal Rev1ew Commlttee Vlolated

'Lampley (Fmdmg of Fact No 104) It is beyond the authorlty of the DEPARTMENT to

Protest, it was determined by the District VI Technical Rev1ew Commlttee for the DlStI‘lCt VI

- }“contract that if the allegatlons by WRS as plead were true, the mformatlon pertaining to the

two key OHM personnel presently committed to the District IV contract should have been
included in OHM’S District VI proposal. The information regarding OHM’S proposed

contract manager and project manager being previously committed to a District IV contract, if

- properly included, would have been weighed by the Technical Review Committee members

during their initial evaluation of the proposals. The record also reveals that the Technical
Review Committee discussed the merits of whether it should reevaluate the WRS and OHM
proposals in light of the fact that OHM did not disclose District IV contract information and
allegations raised by WRS’S protest and OHM’S written rebuttal.

The evidence is undisputed that the Technical Review Committee members did not
discuss the merits of each of their previous evaluations of either the OHM or the WRS proposal

or re-evaluation, and that they did not discuss any member’s decision to evaluate the merits of

information regarding the two key personnel and the current and projected workload.

e Based on the testlmony of the Techmcal Rev1ew Commlttee members and the contract

and credible and speciﬁcally found that: “OHM failed to present sufficient persuasive evidence

o

: ‘prov131ons of the : d‘Department pohcy by d1scussmg at the October 4, 1999 meetmg

~ the WRS protest the OHM rebuttal, and the mformatlon Mr. Gomez obtamed from Mr.

e
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reassess the Administrative Law Judge’s evaluation of testimony and witness demeanor. These
matters are within the exclusive province of the Administrative Law Judge’s exercise of

discretion. See Heifetz, 475 So. 2d at 1277; Perdue, 755 So. 2d at 666.

OHM’S fourth exception to Finding of Fact No. 105, is rejeeted.

OHM’S fifth exception is to Finding of Fact No. 107, because the Administrative Law |
Judge’s findings regarding the workloads of Tom McSweeney and Dean Carter are not
supported by the evidence. OHM argues that the Administrative Law Judge rnade the
unsupported assertion in Finding of Fact No. 107 that because Tom McSweeney and Dean
Carter were listed as OHM’S contract manager and project manager in District IV, they “would
necessarily have some work under the District IV contract whenever OHM is working on a
District IV project.” OHM argues that there is not a shred of evidence in the record, nor ie
there any finding by the Administrative Law Judge elsewhere in the Recommended Order, to
support that ﬁnding. OHM zirgues that the only evidence was that 0HM had a contract in
District IV. No evidence was presented that either Mr. 'MeSweeney or Mr Carter had any

“ workload under that contract in Districr v and that the testimony was clear that they had none.
OHM also contends this finding is erroneous because the Technical Review Committee
members admitted that they never leerneri o‘f Mr McSWeeney’s and Mr. Carter"s workloads.

Stating the obvious, the Heifetz court notes that evidence frequently supports two

mcon51stent findings. Helfetz 475802d at 1277. By 1ts exceptlonandlts argument OHM
advocatee aveiding trre i»sksﬁue‘ of the eurrelrt and p_rojected Workloads of Mr McSweeney and
Mr. Carter by referring t'dk and fociising on only time billedﬂto the; Distriet v contract. The
record reveals that the RFP required OHM to describe current and projected workloads of key
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personnel, and that OHM did not address the District IV contract wofkload for either of its two
key personnel in its proposal for District VI. In fact, OHM’S written rebuttal to the WRS
allegaﬁons admitted that OHM was under contract in District IV and then gave an explanation
of how much work OHM had performed. Therein, OHM states that identifying the District IV
contract work as a “significant” ongoing involvement would have been misleading given the
lack of historical and current work in District 4.” However, as the record reveals, there was no
RFP requirement that bidders list “significant” involvement or only “significant” current or
projected workload.

When conflicting evidence is offered, it is the Administrative Law Judge’s role to decide

the issue one way or the other. Heifetz, 475 So. 2d at 1277. There is competent, substantial
evidence in the record to support the Administrative Law Judge’s resolution of the conflicting
evidence and her findings in this regard.
OHM’S fifth exception to Finding of Fact No. 107, is rejected.
OHM’S sixth exception, to Findings of Fact No. 84 through 86, claims that the
Administrative Law Judge improperly overlooked the significance of Gustavo Pego’s and
V Franciﬁe Ste¢hnan’s‘ memorénda, (Exhibits 30 énd 31) Vx}hich OHM claims contained thé
DEPARTMENT’S reas‘dnsi}for_ District VI re&iéigg OHM’S scores. |
OHM states th_at the evidence, és reﬂected in Findings of Fact No. 82 through 84,
establishes that the DEPARTMENT"S District VI Awards Committee met on October 15,
1999, to approve the “revised” intended award, which now declared WRS to be the successful
bidder. OHM élain;s EXhlbltS 30 and 31 contain‘ grosst inaccurate and even false stateﬁxents;
OHM a‘lyr‘gués» that Becéuse thésé memofanda sét forth the ‘reasons for the
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DEPARTMENT’S actions, they are clear evidence that the action taken was arbitrary and

- capricious. However, OHM contends, the Administrative Law Judge almost completely
ignored the memoranda and their established significance, addressing only the errors in Ms.
Steelman’s memorandum in an endnote. OHM challenges the Administrative Law Judge’s
statement m endnote 37 that Ms. Steelman “may have overstated the commitment of
McSweeney and Carter to District IV,” and claims Ms. Steelman’s statement was not merely an
“overstatement,” but completely false.

The record reveals that neither Exhibit 30 or Exhibit 31 was written by any member of
the Technical Review Committee. Exhibit 30 represents the mental impressions of Ms.
Steelman, the District VI legal counsel assigned the task of preparing the Notice of Revised
Intent to Award to WRS, and it does not constitute evidence of either the evaluations or the
decision of the Technical Review Committee. The admission of Exhibit 30 into evidence was
objected to by counsel for both the DEPARTMENT and WRS. The admission of hearsay _is
controlled by Section 120.57(1)(c), Florida Statutes,'which allows for the admissibility of
hearsay evidence to supplement or explain other evidence. The Administrative Law Judge noted
the hearsay objections and concluded: “I'm going to go ahead and receive this into evidence. A
hearsay objection has been made. It appears to me to be hearsay and I cannot use anything in
this document as a basis for a fmdmg of fact unless its supported by other ev1dence in the
rééérd . (T2 469)1 The record is dev01d of any ev1dence this hearsay evidence could arguably

supplement or explain.

'References to the transcript of the proceeding are in the form of (T. ) Followed by the
volume and appropriate page number(s).
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~over obJect1on in 01v11 actrons ” §l20 57(1)(0), Fla Stat See e. g S1derrs . Den t of Health

“upon hearsay to establish value of assets in determining food stamp eligibility).

Moreover., Gustavo Pegotest1ﬁed that the Awards 'Con.lrnitteeﬁdid not rely on the
contents of Exhibit 301i'n reaching 1ts decision to award the contract to WRS upon re-evaluation
by the Technical Review Committee. Mr Pego also noted that Exhibit 30, bearing a date of
Oetober 20, 1999, was prepared after the Awards Committee met on October 15, 1999.

The other exhibit upon which OHM relies to support its sixth exception is Exhibit 31,
the minutes of the October 15, 1999, Awards Committee meeting approving the revised award
to WRS. The record reveals that while Gustavo Pego, Director of Operations and Chairman of
the Awards Committee, is responsible for keeping a record of Awards Committee meetings, his
secretary prepares the minutes of those meetings. As with Exhibit 30, counsel for the
DEPARTMENT objected to the admission of Exhibit 31 as hearsay. The Administrative Law
Judge similarly admitted Exhibit 31 into evidence subject to the limitations on the use of
hearsay: “To the extent that it’s hearsay, then I will receive it into evidence subject to the
limitations on the use of“,hearsay, unless you establish 1t is not hearsay ....70 (T2.458) OHM
offered no evidence to establish that the minutes were not hearsay.

“Hearsay evidence may be used for the purpose of supplementing or explaining other

evidence, but it shall not be sufficient in itself to support a finding unless it would be admissible

& Rehablhtatwe Servrces 661 So 2d 382 (Fla 1st DCA 1995)(error for hearmg officer to rely

. The law and the greater welght of the ev1dence support the conclusron that Exmblts 30

and 31 are hearsay documents and may not on thelr own constitute the basxs for any ﬁndmgs
of fact by the Administrative Law Judge. By its excepti'on;OHM re-argues the facts in an
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attempt to estabhsh that the Awards Comrmttee rehed on false or maccurate mformatlon in
‘acceptmg the recommendatlon of the Techmcal Rev1ew Commlttee s revised award to WRS and
to establish that the Administrative Law Judge erred in not making findings in this regard. The
‘Administrative Law Judge’s findings and conclusions regarding these exhibits and the
statements therein are supported by competent, substantial evidence, and the law.

OHM’S sixth exception to Findings of Fact No. 84 through 86, is rejected.

OHM’S seventh exception is to Findings of Fact No. 66 and 100. Speciﬁcally, OHM
argues, that the portion of the Administrative Law Judge’s Finding of Fact No. 100 that “OHM
has failed to establish by the greater weight of the perSuasjve, credible evidence that the
Technical Review Contmittee’s interpretation of current and projected workload is
unreasonable, irrational, or illogical,” is clearly erroneous, and not supported by the evidence.

The issue, according to OHM, based on the evidence presented, cannot reasonably be

$1n o

Timited to ‘whiether‘ _thef Technical Review Committee’s interpretation of “current and projected
workload” was reasonable. First, OHM notes that the Administrative Law Judge recognized

the terms “current workload” and “prOJected workload” were not deﬁned in the RFP. OHM

e falso pomts to the fact that the Adrmmstratlve Law Judge charactenzed OHM’S mterpretatlon as

B stramed ” but d1d not ﬁnd OHM’S ‘mterpretatxon to be unreasonable As such the

o vAdmlmstratlve Law Judge nnproperly ‘found that OHM’S proposal actually could have been |
rejected as unresponsive.
OHM argues that regardless of whether the Technical Review Committee’s
interpretation of these terms was reasonable, it was patently unreasonable, arbitrary, and
contrary to competition for the Administrative Law Judge to find that one committee member’s
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“opinion” as to the meaning of certain terms could be: ‘1) the basis for secretly reevaluating
and rescoring OHM’S proposal, as was done; or 2) rejecting OHM’S proposal as unresponsive.
OHM contends that the RFP, and Florida statutory and case law, do not give the
DEPARTMENT the discretion to take such actions against one proposer based simply on one
committee member’s “opinion.” Instead, upon finding that there was a dispute as to the
meaning of this term, which possibly could affect the scores of one proposer, the
DEPARTMENT, according to OHM, was obligated to disclose this to all proposers, and to
allow input from all interested parties as to the actions it was considering taking.

The Administrative Law Judge concluded as a matter of law that the Technical Review
Committee could have rejected OHM’S proposal as non-responsive for its failure to include
current and projected workload on its District IV contract. (Conclusion of Law No. 127)
There is ample evidence in the record and findings in the Recommended Order establishing that
it was OHM’S responsibility to disclose information relating to OHM’S workload on the
District IV contract and OHM did not. The record also reveals that OHM was given a fair
opportunity to address its failure to disclose the material information at issue.

OHM’S reference to the Technical Review Commitiee “secretly reevaluating and
rescoring OHM’S proposal” is without basis in the record. VSuch baseless accusations are both
unvarranted and unsupportable. The recod esablishe tﬁatP\HM b  curtnt conract i
District VI which it failed to reveal and also es';tablishes that the RFP made no reference to
“significant work load,” as OHM continues to offer as the reasoﬁ for its failure to provide the
required infermation. “The Adminjstrative Lew dege weighed the plaip languege of the RFP |
and ifs various interpretatioﬁs and concluded4 that OHM had net sﬁowﬁ that the Technical |
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Review Committee’s interpretation was “unreasonable, irrational, or illogical.” It was not
necessary for the Administrative Law Judge to find OHM’S interpretation to be unreasonable,
but in weighing the evidence and judging the credibility of the witnesses, she did, however, find
OHM’S interpretation to be “strained.” The Administrative Law Judge’s findings in Findings
of Fact No. 66 and 100 are supported by competent, substantial evidence.

OHM’S seventh exception to Findings of Fact No. 66 and 100, is rejected.

OHM’S eighth exception is to Findings of Fact No. 82 and 93, and endnotes 23 and 26,
because the Administrative Law Judge erred in not finding that a special meeting of the Awards
Committee was held, at which Mauricio Gomez was instructed to ascertain the actual workloads
of Mr. McSweeney and Mr. Carter in District IV.

OHM argues that the evidence established that a special meeting of the Awards

Committee was held between the initial award to OHM, and the October 15, 1999, meeting

‘approving the revised award to WRS. Despite this evidence, according to OHM, the

Administrative Law Judge dismissed this issue to an endnote, and accepted Mr. Gomez’s

version of the facts. The Administrative Law Judge’s decision to accept the “story” of Mr.

Gomez as opposed to the testrmony of the two members of the Awards Committee, both of

whom testrﬁed contrary to Mr Gomez was arbltrary, accordmg to OHM

OHM also challenges the Admrmstratlve Law Judge s statement in endnote 23 “In any

‘ event the relevance of whether th1s meetmg d1d or d1d not take place to the 1ssues to be

resolved herein is questlonable. ” In this regard, OHM arg_ues that regardless of any dispute as
to the date the meeting actually took place, there was no question on the record evidence (other
that Mr. Gomez’s mere denials) that Mr. Pego and Mr. Martinez at some point instructed Mr.
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Gomez to ascertain what the actual workloads of Mr. McSweeney and Mr. Carter were, and
that he failed to do so. OHM also claims that Mr. Pego and Mr. Martinez also consistently
testified that Mr. Gomez subsequently told them that he had undertaken such an investigation
(when he had not), and that his statements were the basis for the contents of the memoranda of
Mr. Pego and Ms. Steelman. Thus, whatever the date of the meeting, OHM claims the fact
that it took place is of great importance to demonstrating the fundamental unfairness and
arbitrariness with which the Technical Review Committee conducted its re-evaluation of
OHM’S proposal.

The issue is not whether the Technical Review Committee failed to conduct an extensive
or exhaustive investigation as claimed by OﬁM, but, rather, OHM’S failure to disclose
material information in its proposal as required by the REP that precipitated the re-evaluation of
OHM’S proposal and the revised award to WRS.

The record falls to estabhsh Or support an mference that Mr. Gomez had an “obvious
bias” against OHM, as alleged by OHM. The record establishes that OHM’S District IV
contract began in 1998‘and is to run for three years. The District VI contract was to begin in
1999 and run for three years. (Finding of Fact No. 47) The contract dates overlap and the

same key OHM personnel are comm1tted to both contracts OHM further cr1t1c1zes Mr Gomez

o and faults h1m for OHM’S own\_fallure to reveal thlS in 1ts proposal OHM also attempted to

dlSCI‘edlt Mr Gomez on Cross exammatlon By its exceptlon OHM asks the DEPARTMENT N

‘to rewelgh

the cred1b111ty of w1tnesses and welgh th ev1dence not the DEPARTMENT Helfetz 475 So

2d at 1277.
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The record reflects that Mr. Martinez and Mr. Pego consistently testified regarding the
Awards Committee’s concerns over the duplication of manpower issue on the District IV and
District VI contracts. It was also a matter of record that in OHM’S District IV proposal, as
confirmed by the DEPARTMENT and admitted by OHM in Exhibit 27, the same two key
personnel proposed for the District VI contract were committed full time to the District IV
contract. When WRS filed its protest of the DEPARTMENT’S original intent to award the

contract OHM, an explanatory rebuttal to the protest was sent by OHM. The Administrative

Law Judge found as a matter of fact that the DEPARTMENT had 1o dbligation to go back to

OHM after OHM submitted its written rebuttal to WRS’S protest for further confirmation or
rebuttal, (Finding of Fact No. 99)

OﬂM’S eighth exception to Findings of Fact No. 82 and 93, and endnotes 23 and 26, is
rejected.

OI-]M’Smnth exception is to Findings of Fact No. 70 and 105, because these findings of
the Administrative Law Judge on the issue Qf thc Technical Review. Committeé’s awareness of

the closeness of the original scores directly conflict.

~ In this regard, OHM points to Finding of Fact No. 70 which states:

€y began their re-evaluation, the three members
eview Committee were aware that OHM was
ked proposer and had been identified in the initial
Notice of Intent to Award posted August 26, 1999, as the
company to which the Department intended to award the subject
contract. They also must have been aware of the very small
difference between WRS’s and OHM’s total scores. (emphasis
added by OHM)

OHM then argues that Finding of Fact No. 105 is almost the opposite:
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_"Admlmstratlve Law Judge also spec1ﬁca11y found that “OHM falled to present sufﬁment

':”jv1olat10n of the prov1s1ons of the RFP or Department pohcy or acted arbltrarlly or caprlclously

However, OHM presented no persuasive evidence that the

members of the Technical Review Committee were actually aware

at the time of the October 4, 1999, meeting that little more than .2

points separated the total scores of OHM and WRS.
OHM claims that these two findings contradict one another and undermine findings with regard
to the re-evaluation. OHM claims that the Technical Review Committee members admitted that
they knew the initial scores at the time of their re-evaluation, and therefore believes the
Administrative .Law Judge’s finding in paragraph 105 is further evidence of arbitrariness and

prejudice against OHM in the Recommended Order.

The Administrative Law Judge d1d not find that the Techmcal Review Commlttee

members were aware of the or1g1na1 scores, but rather that they were aware that OHM was the

highest ranked proposer” and inferred from the totality of the evidence that “ [t]hey must have
also been aware of the very small differencebetween WRS’s and OHM’s total score ” (Fmdmg
of Fact No. 70) The Admlmstratlve Law Judge then proceeds to make numerous detalled
findings regardmg the 1nd1v1dua1 re-evaluatlon of the members. (Findings of Fact No. 71-82)

OHM has taken no exception to Findings of Fact No. 71-81. In Findings of Fact No. 75 and

76, the Administrative Law Judge specrﬁcally found that nelther Ms. Costa nor Mr Rodnguez |

L ’dlscussed W1th Mr Gomez or Wlth one another thelr 1nd1v1dua1 scormg or the re evaluatlon o

and that each re- evaluated 1ndependent1y No exceptlons were taken to these ﬁndmgs The -

ok : : persuasrve ev1dence to estabhsh that Mr Gomez Ms Costa or Mr Rodrlguez acted in
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the RFP . . . .” (Finding of Fact No. 106) No exception is taken to Finding of Fact No. 106.
The Administrative Law Judge’s findings that the committee members “must have been
aware of the very small difference” between scores, but that no persuasive evidence was
presented that they were actually aware that the difference was only “a little more than .2
points,” are not inconsistent. The Administrative Law Judge made several pertinent findings
regarding the re-evaluation and that OHM had failed to present persuasive evidence of any bias
or prejudice against OHM or in favor of WRS Additionally, the Administrative Law Judge

found that: “Even assuming that the members of the Technical Review Committee were aware

o : 'A that any decrease in p01nts awarded for OHM’s Management Plan might result n its losmg the

e contract award, it cannot reasonably be lnferred that the Technical Rev1ew Committee members

demded to re- evaluate OHM S proposal for 1mproper motives or out of favoritism to WRS ”
(Finding of Fact No. 105) OHM’S claims of prejudice by both the Administrative Law Judge
and the Technical Review Committee members are unsupported by the record or the
Recommended. Order. The objected to ﬁndings of the Administrative Law Judge are not
inconsistent and are supported by competent, substantial evidence.

OHM’S ninth exception to Findings of Fact No.70 and 105, is rejected.

OHM’S tenth exception is to Findings of Fact No. 53 and 107, because the

Administrative Law Judge improperly created a distinction between “billable” time and time

spent in District IV as to Tom McSweeney’s workload.

In this exception, OHM argues that the Administrative Law Judge made the point in two
separate portions of the Recommended Order that OHM only presented evidence that Mr.
McSweeney had put in no “billable” time in District IV, but did not indicate “the time he had
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actually spent working on the District IV contract.” According to OHM, this distinction was
drawn without evidence in the record and the only testimony as to Mr. McSweeney’s work in
District IV was offered by Mr. McSweeney, and he testified that he had billed no time to
District IV. A presumption that there must have been some other type of work Mr.
McSweeney was performing in District IV is, according to OHM, unsupported by any record -
evidence, and further evidences the arbitrariness and prejudice against OHM by the
Administrative Law Judge in the Recommended Order.

The record is undisputed that OHM failed to include any workload from District IV in
its District VI proposal. In defense of this omission, OHM attempted to create a distinction
between workloads and signiﬁcant workloads, varying definitions of workload, and billed time.
However, OHM admitted its failure to include the required information in its September 24,
1999, written rebuttal. (Exhibit 27) Requiring current and projected workload was material to
the REP and allowed the Technical Review Committee members to assess the time and percent
of availability of key personnel that would be committed to performing other contracts.

OHM'’S explanation of its failure to include the District IV workload did not persuade the
Techmcal Rev1ew Committee or the Admimstrative Law Judge In fact the Admimstrative B |
Law Judge found the omission so significant as to conclude as a matter of law that the Technical
kReview Committee, COuld have rejected OHM’S proposal as non—responaive due to its failure to
include material mformation in its proposal regardmg workload. (See Fmdmg of Fact No 101

and Conclusmn of Law No 127) B o

OHM’S tenth excepnon to Fmdmgs of Fact No 53 and 107 is rejected
OHM'’S eleventh exception is to Findings of Fact No. 108 and 109, and Conclusions of

Page 25 of 34



#

| 208 2

B 21

Silin 5

e

Law No. 125 and 128, because based on the matters set forth in OHM’S first ten exceptions,
these findings are not supported by competent record evidence, and are arbitrary and clearly
erroneous. |

Findings of Fact No. 108 and 109 conclude that OHM presented sufficient persuasive
evidence to establish Ms. Costa [and Mr. Gomez] acted arbitrarily “in taking certain actions in
the re-evaluation.” These findings are favorable to OHM. ‘Exceptions to favorable findings are
unusual. Nevertheless, the authority to weigh the evidence is the province of the

Administrative Law Judge, not the DEPARTMENT. Perdue, 755 So. 2d at 665. While even

the DEPARTMENT might conclude that the actions of Ms. Costa and Mr. Gomez in this
regard were not arbitrary, the DEPARTMENT is not authorized to reweigh the evidence. Q
OHM also takes exception to Conclusions of Law No. 125 and 128, but merely
references other arguments made in previous exceptions. OHM’S lackp of specificity, and
failure to inélude sufficient objected to facts or point to‘any legal authority to support its
exception hampers the DEPARTMENT’S ability to adequately addressthe exception. In

Conclusion of Law No. 125 the Administrative Law Judge determined that based on her

‘ ﬁndings of fact OHM had falled to prove by a preponderance of ev1dence that the '

DEPARTMENT S decrsion to re-evaluate OHM’S techmcal proposal was contrary to 1ts rules S

policies, or the. spemﬁcatlons, or that its decision was arbrtrary or capricious. In Conclusion of

-~ Law No. 128 the Administrative Law Judge determined that OHM had similarly failed to prove

by a preponderance of the ev1dence that the Techmcal Revrew Commrttee acted 1mproper1y or

in vrolation of the DEPARTMENT’S rules pohcies or» the RFP as a result of the members
discussion of WRS’S protest OHM’S rebuttal and Mr Gomez s subsequently obtained
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information, or that the members of the Technical Review Committee violated DEPARTMENT
rules or policies or the RFP by deducting a point from OHM’S score upon their re-evaluations.

These conclusions and the findings from which they are drawn are supported by
competent, substantial evidence and the law.

OHM'’S eleventh exception to Findings of Fact No.108 and 109, and Conclusions of
Law No. 125 and 128, is rejected.

OHM’S twelfth exception is to end_notes 27 and 45 of the Recommended Order,
claiming it was clearly erroneous for the Administrative Law Judge to conclude that there was
no evidence to support a finding that the DEPARTMENT acted contrary. to competition.

OHM argues that the DEPARTMENT’S actions were contrary to competition, in that
all of its actions in reevaluating, rescoring, and. changing its award took place without notice to
any of the proposers. The DEPARTMENT, according to OHM, could Irave avoided some, if
not all of the problems that have arisen in this matter, if it had simbly notified the proposers that
an issue had arisen w,ith’reg,g.ard to OHM’S proposal,’ and that the DEPARTMENT was
investigating the matter further. Once it had completed its investigation. OHM claims the
DEPARTMENT could then have invited responses on the issue from the proposers involved.
'Durlng th1s process OI-IM argues that the DEPARTMENT could have learned that Mr |
McSweeney had not billed an hour to the District IV contract, as well as the reasons why OHM
prOJected no work for Mr McSweeney or Mr. Carter in Dlstrlct IV as OHM asserts the |
evidence subsequently estabhshed. ‘Insteadk, OHM contiaues,the DEPARTMENT acted
improperly and simply took action unilaterally, behind the scenes, without fully gathering all
\ relevant facts, and, as a result, made a decision in a clandestine group setting, acted in favor of
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. cure the deﬁc1en01es of its pre

one proposer based on unsubstantiated information, and used criteria outside the RFP.

Initially, OHM’S twelfth exception makes reference to pages 57 and 75 of the
Recommended Order as well as to endnotes 27 and 45. It is assumed that these pages are
referenced because it is on those pages that the superscript for the challenged endnotes appear.
If pages 57 and 75 are referenced as generalized exceptions to the findings therein, they must be
rejected because the mere reference to pages of a Recommended Order is insufficient to form a
basis for an exception. An agency is required to make an explicit ruling on each exception

made by a party. See Fla. Admin. Code R. 28-5.405(3); Lloyd v. Dep’t of Professional Reg.,

473 So. 2d 720 (Fla. 4th DCA 1985)(agency required to rule on exceptions and state with
particularity its reasons for so ruling). Without a specific exception to a specific finding of | fact
or conclusion of law, the DEPARTMENT cannot specifically rule on or address OHM’S
challenge to the Recommended Order.

As to endnotes 27 and 45, the DEPARTMENT notes that the Administrative Law Judge

speciﬁcally found as a matter of law that the DEPARTMENT would have been justified in

reJectlng OHM’S proposal as non—responswe due to 1ts fallure to dlSClOSC its workload in
District IV (Conclusxon of Law No. 127) However when WRS ﬁled 1ts protest OHM had

the opportumty to prov1de additional 1nformatlon 1t wanted the DEPARTMENT to consider

“and did so. The ev1dence establishes, and the Admmlstratlve Law Judge found, that “The

| Department had no obhgatlon to allow OHM another opportumty to explam the omission in 1ts

o "proposal of any mentlon of the Dlstnct IV contract.” (Finding of Fact No. 99) OHM failed to

f theTechmcal Rev1ew Comnnttee the

’ 'Awards Comm1ttee and the Admm1strat1ve Law Judge
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In endnote 27, the Administrative Law Judge explains that OHM failed to present any
evidence establishing that WRS received a competitive advantage as a result of the
DEPARTMENT?’S actions and that, therefore, no findings of fact were made in that regard.
Similarly, in endnote 45, the Administrative Law Judge rejects OHM’S assertion that it should
prevail because OHM had established that the assigned work on its District IV contract was
$539,782.46, which is signiﬁcandy less than the $2 million the DEPARTMENT estimated.
The Administrative Law Judge rejected OHM?’S position because her function was to review the
DEPARTMENT’S decision in light of the facts on which the decision was based. She
concluded, therefore, that the facts offered by OHM that its ongoing work was less than $2
- million was irrelevant. (endnote 45) These ﬁndings and conclusions are supported by
competent, substantial evidence and the law.

OHM’S twelfth exception to endnotes 27 and 45 of the Recommended Order, is
rejected. |

OHM’S thirtee_ntn exception is a general exception to the Administrative Law Judge’s
ultimate conclusions, a lack of findings, and the lack of a conclusion that the DEPARTMENT

_ acted arbitrarily, capriciously; and contrary to competition, and that as a result, the

DEPARTMENT should have either reJected all b1ds and ordered a new RFP to be 1ssued or

awarded the contracr to OHM“. | |
| By its thirteenth exceptlon, OHM generally challenges the ultimate.conclusion of the
"Admmrstrauve Law Judge approvmg the DEPARTMENT’S actions and de01s1on by referrmg
to the reasons set forth in its other exceptlons and as set forth in its Proposed Findings of Fact
and Conclusions of Law. The burden was on OHM in protesting the intended award of the
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mterpretatlon was not shown to be clearly erroneous. State Contractmg 709 So 2d at 610.

contract to WRS to establish that the award was invalid. State Contracting & Engineering
Corp. v. Dep’t of Transp., 709 So. 2d 607, 609 (Fla. 1st DCA 1998). Having heard and
reviewed all of the evidence and applying the law to that evidence, the Administrative Law
Judge concluded that OHM failed to meet its burden. OHM has failed to demonstrate a factual
or legal basis tor invalidating the DEPARTMENT"S reconsideration of the initial decision to
award to OHM due to OHM’S admitted failure to not disclose its contract commitment in
District IV when it submitted its District VI proposal.

The standard of proof in a competitive procurement protest is whether the
DEPARTMENT’S action was clearly erroneous, contrary to competition, arbitrary or
capricious. § 120.57(3)(f), Fla. Stat. (2000). OHM, as concluded by the Administrative Law
Judge, failed to demonstrate by either documentary or testimonial evidence in the record, that
the. Technical Review Committee’s re-evaluation of the WRS and OHM proposals was not
based on an honest exercise of discretion, on a reasonable and factual deliheration of the
proposals, and in accordance with Florida law and DEPARTMENT procedures and rules.

A public body has wide discretion in soliciting and accepting proposals for pubhc

lmprovements and 1ts decrsron when based on an honest exercise of dlscretron will not be

‘ overturned even if it ‘may appear erroneous and even if reasonable persons may disagree.

Baxter’s Asphalt & Concrete, Inc. v. Dep t of Transp., 475 So. 2d 1284, 1287 (Fla. 1st DCA

1985) In exermsmg its drscretlon in mterpretmg and applymg the statute and

: and rules m the manner 1t d1d mthls case, the DEPARTMENT’S

The DEPARTMENT also has the discretion to determine the legal sufficiency of a bid protest
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- before it is required to refer the bid protest to the Division of Administrative Hearings. D.A.B.

Constructors, Inc. v. Dep’t ofwTransp., 656 So. 2d 946, 942 (Fla. 1st DCA 1995)(citing Fort
Howard Co. v. Dep’t of Management Servs., 624 So. 2d 783 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993)(affirming
denial of bid protest due to lack of standing)).

The Administrative Law} Judge concluded, and the record in its entirety reveals, that the

~ DEPARTMENT?’S actions when the Technical Review Committee learned that OHM failedto

disclose material information requlred by the RFP were reasonable and that the evidence did not
form a sufﬁment basrs to conclude that the DEPAETMENT’S actlons were clearly erroueoue -
contrary to competition, arbitrary, or capricious.

OHM’S thirteenth exception to the Recommended Order, is rejected.

FINDINGS OF FACT

R Rt s 20 R

1. After review of the record in its entirety, it is determined that the Administrative

SN

Law Judge’ks Findings of Fact in paragraphs lthrough 110 of the Recommended Order are
supported by competent, substantial evidence and are accepted and incorporated as if fully set
forth herein.

2. The cost ineurred by the DEPARTMENT for the attendanee of the court reporter N
and the transcrrpt of the proceedmg is $3, 219.00 |

| CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The DEPARTMENT has Jurlsdlctron over the subject matter of and the partres to
this proceeding pursuant to Chapter 120, Florida Statutes.

2. The Conclusions of Law in paragraphs 111 through 130 of the Recommended Order
are fully supported in law As such, they are adopted and incorporated as if fully set forth
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herein.

3. Pursuant to Section 287.042(2)(c), Florida Statutes, “any person who files an action
protesting a decision or intended decision pertaining to contracts administered by the
depai*tment, a water management district, or a state agency pursuant to s.120.57(3)(b) shall post
.. . abond” and “[i]f, after completion of the administrative hearing process and any appellate
court proceedings, the . . . agency prevails, it shall recover all costs and charges which shall be

”

included in the final order or judgment, excluding attorney’s fees. . . .

ORDER
Based upon the foregoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, it is
ORDERED that the Administrative Law Judge’s Recommended Order is adopted in its
entirety. It is further
ORDERED that the award of the subject contract, RFP-DOT—99/200-6-62DS, FIN
Number 249943, to Intervenor; WRS INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENVIRONM_ENT, INC.,
is confirmed. It is further

ORDERED that the Respondent, STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF

B TRANSPORTATION, hereby retains jurisdiction over this matter for the sole purpose of
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considering the Motion for Costs and any responses thereto, which shall be addressed by

separate order.

DONE AND ORDERED this 277% day of September, 2001.

TH-.. F%/Df

THOMAS F. B ., P.E
Secretary

Department of Transportatlon
Haydon Burns Building

605 Suwannee Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399
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NOTICE OF RIGHT TO APPEAL

THIS ORDER CONSTITUTES FINAL AGENCY ACTION AND MAY BE
APPEALED PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.68, FLORIDA STATUTES, AND RULES 9.110
AND 9.190, FLORIDA RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE, BY FILING A NOTICE
OF APPEAL CONFORMING TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 9.110(d), FLORIDA
RULES OF APPELLATE PROCEDURE, BOTH WITH THE APPROPRIATE DISTRICT
COURT OF APPEAL, ACCOMPANIED BY THE APPROPRIATE FILING FEE, AND
WITH THE DEPARTMENT'S CLERK OF AGENCY PROCEEDINGS, HAYDON BURNS
BUILDING, 605 SUWANNEE STREET, M.S. 58, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-0458,
WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS OF RENDITION OF THIS ORDER.

Copies furnished to:

Brian F. McGrail, Esquire
Assistant General Counsel
Department of Transportation
Haydon Burns Building

605. Suwannee Street, M.S. 58
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0458

The Honorable Patricia Hart Malono
Administrative Law Judge

Division of Administrative Hearings
The DeSoto Building

1230 Apalachee Parkway
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1550

William C. Davell, Esquire
Christopher Barber, Esquire
May, Meacham & Davell, P.A.
One Financial Plaza, Suite 2602
Bank of America Tower

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33394

Betty J. Steffens, Esquire
Samantha Boge, Esquire

Post Office Box 82

Tallahassee, Florida 32302-0082

Jose Garcia-Pedrosa, Esquire

Ruden, McClosky, Smith,
Schuster & Russell

701 Brickell Avenue, Suite 1900

Miami, Florida 33131

Nancy Lyons

Contracts Administration, District VI
Department of Transportation

1000 Northwest 111th Avenue
Miami, Florida 33172-5800
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